MINUTES
OF THE
STATE TRANSPORTATION BOARD
STUDY SESSION
9:30 A.M., Thursday, September 5, 2002
Arizona Department of Transportation
Board Room
206 South 17" Avenue
Phoenix, Arizona 85007

The State Transportation Board met in official session for a study session at 9:30 am., Thursday,
Septerber 5, 2002, with Chairman Katie Dusenberry presiding. Other Board members present
included: Vice Chairperson Ingo Radicke, Rusty Gant, Dick Hileman, Bill Jeffers, Joe Lane, and
Jim Martin. Also present were Director Victor Mendez; Debra Brisk, Deputy Director; John
McGee, Chief Financial Officer, Administrative Services Division; Dick Wright, State Engineer;
and Dale Buskirk, Acting Director, Transportation Planning Division. There were approximately
20 people in the audience.

Chairperson Dusenberry called the meeting to order and led those present in the Pledge of
Allegiance.

“Draft” Board Policies

Chairperson Dusenberry reviewed the draft Transportation Board Policies and asked for Board
members’ comments and questions.

A member suggested they add System Preservation to the list of Commitments. The Board
agreed, recommending it be added as the fourth commitment.

The Board discussed the inclusion of “(whenever tribal boundaries are crossed)” in Item 1 under
National and International Cooperative Planning Policy. The Board decided to remove the
language.

It was recommended Policy 15 — Local Use of Rights-of-way for Bus PullOuts Policy be
included as Ttem 3 under Policy 4 — Multi-modal Facilities Policy. The Board agreed.

With regard to Policy 11, Mr. Jeffers suggested they provide for Board approval of the plan
ADOT develops and implements for each highway level of development.

Under Policy 16, it was decided the Board’s support of adequate staffing and cross training at
Ports of Entries will be listed as a separate bulleted item. Additionally, “Motor Vehicle
Division™ in the second bulleted item was changed to “ADOT”.

In response to Mr. Jeffer's concern with regard to Policy 17, the Board agreed to clarify the
Janguage in Item 1, indicating the policy refers to roadways that are functionally classified as
local roads.



Upon Mr. Mendez’s recommendation, the Board added a bullet item under Policy 19, stating the
Board will advocate legislation that will support or increase transportation funding for the state.

With regard to the new Page 16, the Board discussed whether full scoping should be completed
before a project can be included in the program. Ultimately, the Board felt it would be
unrealistic to require full scoping, but that projects should be scoped as fully as possible to
provide a better idea of the costs involved.

The Board elected to remove Item 3 under Policy 33 and add a new Item 4 indicating the Board’s
desire to maintain the state’s bond rating.

Mr. Martin pointed out Policy 36 makes no reference to the Generally Accepted Accounting
Principals.

Other minor text changes and typographical/grammatical corrections were also noted.

The Board indicated their acceptance of the draft Policies as modified. Chairperson Dusenberry
stated the Policies will go to public hearing at the Board meeting in Nogales.

Desert Springs Equipment Pass Project (Littlefield, Arizona)

Mr. Dick Wright, State Engineer, updated the Board regarding the Desert Springs Equipment
Pass Project in Littlefield, Arizona. He explained I-15, located in the northwest corner of the
state, was planned in the late 1950’s and constructed in the mid-1980’s when few people lived in
the area. He said the area is currently being served by an equipment pass and is requesting a
second equipment pass.

Monty Holme, representing the Desert Springs community, said one small and dangerous
interchange currently serves thousands of acres. He said the area’s economic development is
slow, despite a number of Arizona residents who travel through the area into St. George to work.
He stated their area plan indicates the area will double over the next two or three years, however,
the County will not let subdivisions into the area due to its lack of adequate access. He
expressed his opinion there is a desperate need for the interchange. He displayed photographs of
the one-way equipment pass, explaining it is the only access for a large number of residents,
school buses, trucks, emergency vehicles and pedestrians. Mr. Holme discussed a petition
currently being circulated among local residents, listing their concerns and reasons for
characterizing the second pass as an immediate emergency. He noted a number of major
landowners have threatened to litigate if necessary. He said the school’s principal and bus driver
have both expressed concern about transporting students through the tunnel. He submitted a
letter from the Beaver Dam/Littlefield Fire Department Fire Chief, stating the lack of room in the
tunnel results in response delays. He stated the tunnel’s roofline buckles somewhat and has been
scraped by larger vehicles. He pointed out the tunnel is completely unusable when flooded.

Mr. Wright noted construction on a drainage pumping system will begin next month, taking
water to the existing creek area to the west.



M. Holme stated the tunnel is very dark and requires two or three seconds for a person’s eyes to
adjust. He played a short video showing normal daily congestion. He said, despite the fact
people feel an interchange was promised, their proposal is to widen the underpass to two lanes
and provide for pedestrian access. He noted the ramps would not have to be modified.

Mr. Wright explained a previous study looked at a second equipment pass, paralieling the
existing pass, with additional space for a pedestrian walkthrough. He said they have asked
Transportation Planning to update the study and he expects the project to cost $1.5 million. He
said, while they would typically ask the local community to share in the cost, there is no
community base or developer to draw from in this case.

In response to a member’s question, Mr. Holme stated there have been a number of accidents,
but thankfully no deaths.

Chairperson Dusenberry asked how many residents live in the Littlefield area. Mr. Holme
estimated 3,500 to 3,800 residents in the greater Littlefield area.

Mr. Radicke asked if HES funding would be available. Mr. Mendez said they would have to
reprioritize the projects in the HES program and show an accident history. Mr. Holme said,
unfortunately, no one has kept track of the number of accidents.

Mr. Radicke asked where the next closest alternative access is located. Mr. Holme explained the
next access point is either 1.5 miles in one direction or 15 miles in the other.

The meeting recessed for a short break.
Long Range Plan

Dale Buskirk, Acting TPD Assistant Director, presented the Long-Range Transportation Plan’s
draft goals and objectives. He stated the goals and objectives were based on the mission
statemnent and looked at ADOT, regional and local agency transportation plans; other Arizona
agency plans; long-range planning efforts from neighboring states; long-range planning efforts in
pioneer vision states; and four Arizona-specific issues papers. He reviewed the mission
statement, stating to achieve the mission the plan must be fiscally responsible; provide citizens
with transportation choice; emphasize accountability; be responsive to change; harmonize with
Arizona’s proud tradition and unique diversity; encourage coordination of transportation and
land use planning at the state, regional and local levels; and address air, transit, rail, highway,
bicycle and pedestrian travel. He said they are currently finishing Phase I of the effort. He
identified access and mobility, safety, economic vitality, stewardship and environmental
sensitivity as the long-range goals, reviewing the performance factors used to determine the level
to which each goal is achieved. Mr. Buskirk stated the draft goals and objectives will evolve
based on public and stakeholder input through the initial partnering events, data availability, their
ability to support performance evaluation and the MoveAZ team’s assessment. He explained the
goals and objectives will be used to support the performance evaluation methodology, to conduct
transportation system performance analyses, to identify and prioritize transportation projects and



programs, as a frame for transportation policies and as a basis for boundaries of the system
alternatives to be considered.

John Pein reviewed in detail how each goal correlates and supports the Board’s policies. He
said, while no Board policy deals with the safety goal and two policies did not fit with the
MoveAZ goals, the Board’s validation of the mission statement endorses those goals by
implication. Mr. Buskirk emphasized that, overall, the goals fit closely with the Board’s
policies, even to the level of specific objectives.

M. Pein demonstrated the Long Range Plan (Move AZ) Web Site, explaining it is intended as a
resource for the public to learn more about the plan. He pointed out the website will save money
on outreach efforts and increase the dissemination of information.

Mr. Pein reviewed their near-term next steps, including Stakeholder Focus Group meetings in
late-September and Regional Public Forum meetings in mid-October. He explained the Data
Team met in August to discuss data needs and shortfalls. He said various Input Teams will meet
in October to discuss performance measures and in November to look at program tradeoffs and
planning. He noted a Working Group meeting will be held September 6, wherein they will
discuss the Phase I report and the startup of the public involvement process. He said they will
also review the performance based planning approach.

A member asked how their timeframe matches up with the timeframe of other transportation
agencies around the state. Mr. Buskirk said the forum involved all major regional planning
entities in an effort to develop a cooperative development schedule. He stated, however, the time
schedule has since gotten out of synch, explaining it is extraordinarily difficult to coordinate the
development of plans. He assured the Board they are cognizant of where all of the regional
entities are in their planning processes and will attempt to coordinate their process as much as is
feasible.

Director Mendez asked if Board members will be invited to the public forums. Mr. Buskirk said
it is their intent to keep the Board fully involved in the plan’s development. Mr. Pein offered to
provide all of the information to any Board members interested in attending the forums. He said,
however, it is their intention to minimize ADOT’s involvement in the forums, explaining they
hope to create an environment where the public feels comfortable to comment.

Five Year Plan Process Improvements

Debra Brisk, Deputy Director, updated the Board regarding the Five-Year Program Process. She
said she, Mr. Wright, Ms. Tischer and Mr. McGee looked at how the program process could be
improved. She explained the five year program is a statement to the public of how they plan to
address the state’s transportation needs. She said all projects in the program must be scoped
prior to entering the program and costs must reflect the final scoping document costs. She stated
all increases in project costs during the design stages will be done through the Project Review
Board and PPAC process. She noted exceptions can be made for projects not scoped if approved
in writing by the State Engineer and followed through within the PPAC process. She said the
Department is implementing a process for performance based planning within the 2005 to 2009



program. She stated ADOT’s Fiscal Year 09 project listing within the Five Year plan, as well as
each subsequent program update, will be based on the Long Range Plan criteria. She explained
project scoping documents must follow a process for review to ensure all stakeholders get review
input into the project scope. She said all project costs associated or targeted for usage from a
Subprogram must be approved by the subprogram manager. She recommended the Project
Review Board Project Change Request form be adjusted to indicate the subprogram’s manager
concurs with the funding from their subprogram. She stated they are establishing a team to look
at an agency-wide Intergovernmental Agreement policy, integrating the process of programming
IGAs and identifying the level of financial commitment involved. She stated they no longer
assume Public Lands Highway Grant Program or Federal Discretionary funding until the
application is accepted or the request is approved. She said, when possible, the same designer
used during scoping will follow through with design. She explained project increases will be
based on current criteria and go through a process of approval. She stated there will be no end of
the year project increases within the program update cycle. She noted TPD and ITD will
monitor projects that go to PRB and PPAC. Ms. Brisk stated the financial impact of all policy or
business changes should be part of the review and approval process. She said Mr. McGee is
currently looking at the inflationary factor to see how it can best be integrated into the program.
She stated Mr. McGee is also establishing a working group of financial staff representing the
Department, MAG, PAG and Statewide regions who will meet to consider and develop
recommendations for improving and funding the Five Year Program discount factor.

Mr. Jeffers asked if any consideration was given to advancing projects. Ms. Brisk explained
advancing a project would change its schedule, requiring that it go through the PRB and PPAC
process.

Increase Federal Funding and Project Selection Criteria

Mr. John McGee, Chief Financial Qfficer/Administrative Services Division, updated the Board
regarding the increase of federal funding received from the FY 2003 appropriation. He reviewed
the upside and downside financial potentials he originally discussed during his June 6
presentation. He announced the President signed HR4775 which essentially states the RABA
adjustment for FY 2003 will be zero. He explained the Five Year Program financial plan
assumed a base level program of $27.8 billion and a RABA adjustment totaling ($4.4 billion) for
a total program amount of $23.4 billion. He said, assuming the base Jevel program as specified
in TEA21 is ultimately in the final appropriations bill, Arizona’s share would total $433 million
and ADOT’s share would total $333 million. He noted Congress still has to take action with
regard to the base level funding numbers. He said they will not know the final numbers until
November or December.

Mr. McGee stated, given the fact it appears there will be an additional $50 million in federal
funding for FY 2003, the Board has several options. He said the most conservative action would
be to do nothing in FY 2003 and reevaluate the situation as part of the FY 2004-2008 program
update. He stated, conversely, the Board could increase the FY 2003-2004 program’s size,
spending the entire $50 million. He said a more moderate action would be for the Board to
choose to increase the FY 2006-2007 program’s size, avoiding an immediate impact on the
program.



With regard to the downside potential, Mr. McGee stated the national and Arizona economies
have not improved. He noted July Maricopa RARF collections were the worst in nine months.
He said HURF collections continue to do well, however, they expect a continued lag in Federal
Highway Trust Fund collections. He reviewed DPS funding allocations, stating the program
assumes a better economy by FY 2004 and that the legislature would start funding more of DPS
with General Fund monies. He said, so far, it appears they may have understated the FY 2004
and 2005 allocations. He said the biggest downside potential is that an attempt could be made to
redirect VLT funds in an effort to balance the FY 2003 and 2004 budgets. He pointed out the
VLT is not constitutionally protected.

With regard to the additional federal monies, Mr. McGee recommended they take the more
moderate approach, increasing the FY 2006-2007 program. He explained the recommended
approach recognizes additional federal funds will be received in FY 2003 and allows the FY
2003-2004 program to proceed even if some additional funding cuts are made. He said the
recommendation avoids the possibility of moving projects into FY 2003-04, only to have to
move them back out again. He said it also preserves their bonding capacity for the future and
saves some interest costs, '

Mr. Jeffers expressed his opinion the additional federal monies should be incrementally
disbursed throughout the program, starting in FY 2003, explaining placing the money in a
contingency fund could make it susceptible to other groups looking for additional funding. Ms.
Brisk explained they are looking at deferred projects and projects scheduled in later years to see
if they can be brought into the FY 2006/07 timeframe. She said they will also look at programs
that were part of the original FY 2003/04 program, but were later removed or delayed to see if
they can be brought back into the program. Mr. Jeffers pointed out they could face higher
interest rates if bonding is deferred.

Mr. Radicke stated he is comfortable with Mr. McGee’s recommendation.
Ms. Brisk offered to brief the Board on this issue at the next study session.
In response to a member’s question, Mr. Kevin Biesty, Legislative Liaison, stated he does not

foresee the Legislature coming into session until October. He noted, however, the Governor
could decide to call them into session at any time.



Adjournment
No closing comments were made.

Board Action: A motion to adjourn was made, seconded and passed unanimously.

The meeting adjourned at 2:00 p.m.

Ao Mt

Katie Dusenberry, Chairperson
State Transportation Board

'/c,-Z //M

Victor Mendez, Directoy”
Arizona Department of Transportation




